
 

 
 

Moraga-Orinda Fire District 
Board of Directors 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 20, 2019 

6:00 p.m. CLOSED SESSION 
7:00 p.m. OPEN SESSION 

 
PLEASE NOTE NEW MEETING ADDRESS: 

Sarge Littlehale Room 
22 Orinda Way 

Orinda, CA 94563 
 
 

1. OPENING CEREMONIES   
1.1 Call the Meeting to Order 
1.2 Roll Call 

 
2 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 The public is invited to speak on any matter not appearing on the agenda, and within the subject 

matter jurisdiction of the District. Comments should be limited to three minutes. Please state your 
name and address for the record. 

 
3. CLOSED SESSION 

3.1 Conference with Legal Counsel – Potential Litigation 
 Potential litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government Code Section 54956.9 
3.2 Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 

(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
Pacific-Mountain Contractors of California, Inc. v. Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Contra Costa 
County Superior Court C18-02124 

3.3 Conference with Labor Negotiator 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) 
Agency Designated Representative: Jonathan Holtzman 
Employee Organization: Local 2700 United Clerical, Technical & Specialized Employees 

3.4  Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
(Government Code Section 54957) 
Public Employee Appointment Title: Fire Chief  
 

4. RECONVENE THE MEETING 
4.1 Call the Meeting to Order 
4.2 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
5. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT  

The public is invited to speak on any matter not appearing on the agenda, and within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the District. Comments should be limited to three minutes. Please state your 
name and address for the record. 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA  

7.1    Meeting Minutes – May 15, 2019 (regular), October 16, 2019 (regular) 
Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 

7.2    Monthly Incident Report for October 2019 
     Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 



 
MORAGA-ORINDA FIRE DISTRICT                                                                                                                          
Board of Directors Agenda                                                                                                                                     Page 2                                                                   
 

 
 

7.3    Monthly Check/Voucher Register – October 2019 
     Staff Recommendation: Approve and File    

7.4    Monthly Financial Report – September 2019 
     Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 

7.5 Quarterly Treasurer’s Investment Report  
     Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 

7.6    Quarterly Ambulance Billing Report 
   Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 

7.7  Approve Changes to the Audit Ad Hoc Committee and Dissolve the Long Range Financial 
Forecast Ad Hoc Committee into the Finance Standing Committee 
Staff Recommendation: Add President Danziger to the Audit Ad Hoc Committee; Approve the 
purpose of the Audit Ad Hoc Committee to provide guidance to the new auditor regarding board 
expectations to remain in force until June 2020; Dissolve the Long Range Financial Forecast Ad 
Hoc Committee into the Finance Standing Committee. 

7.8  Approval of Resolution NO. 19-11 Approving the Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement 
of the Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority and the Updated Liability Risk Coverage 
Agreement  
Staff Recommendation: Approve Resolution NO. 19-11 Approving the Sixth Amended Joint 
Powers Agreement of the Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority and the Updated Liability Risk 
Coverage Agreement 

 
8. REGULAR AGENDA 

8.1 Annual Audit and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended  
 June 30, 2019 

Staff will present information to the Board regarding the Annual Audit and Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019. 
Staff Recommendation: 1) Discuss; 2) Deliberate; 3) Approve the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019, the Independent Accountant’s Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures for Appropriations Limit Calculation for the Year Ended 
June 30, 2019 and the Communication With Those Charged With Governance June 30, 2019. 

8.2 Discussion of Reclassification of District Aide Positions to Fuels Mitigation Specialists and 
Transition From Part Time to Full Time Positions 
Staff will present information to the Board regarding the reclassification of District Aide positions 
to Fuels Mitigation Specialists and transition from part time to full time positions.  
Staff Recommendation: 1) Discussion Only.  

8.3 North Orinda Shaded Fuel Break Biology and Cultural Resources Summary Reports 
Staff will present information to the Board regarding the biology and cultural resources summary 
reports.  
Staff Recommendation: 1) Information Only.  

8.4 Approval of Amendment 2 to the Consulting Services Agreement Between the Moraga-
Orinda Fire Protection District and Consolidated CM, Inc. in the Amount of $160,000 for 
Fire Station 43 Construction Management Services and Approval of Capital Projects Fund 
Expenditure Budget Adjustment Increase in the Amount of $65,087 

 Staff will present information to the Board regarding Amendment 2 to the Consulting Services 
Agreement Between the Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District and Consolidated CM, Inc. in the 
Amount of $160,000 for Fire Station 43 Construction Management Services and Capital Projects 
Fund Expenditure Budget Adjustment Increase. 

      Staff Recommendation:  1) Discuss; 2) Deliberate; 3) Approve Amendment 2 to the Consulting 
Services Agreement Between the Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District and Consolidated CM, 
Inc. in the Amount of $160,000 and Approve Capital Projects Fund Expenditure Budget 
Adjustment Increase in the Amount of $65,087. 

 
 



 
MORAGA-ORINDA FIRE DISTRICT                                                                                                                          
Board of Directors Agenda                                                                                                                                     Page 3                                                                   
 

 
 

8.5 Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Cooperative Funding Agreement with East Bay 
Regional Park District for Fuels Management in an Amount Not to Exceed $313,000 

 Staff will present information to the Board regarding Amendment No. 1 to the Cooperative Funding 
Agreement Among the East Bay Regional Park District and the Moraga-Orinda Fire District for 
Fuels Management in an Amount Not to Exceed $313,000. 

      Staff Recommendation:  1) Discuss; 2) Deliberate; 3) Authorize the Fire Chief to Enter into 
Amendment No. 1 with East Bay Regional Park District to Conduct Fuels Management in an 
Amount Not to Exceed $313,000. 

 
9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a. Audit Ad Hoc Committee (Director Jex) (and Director Danziger – pending approval under 
Item 8.3) 

b. Finance Committee (Directors Danziger and Jorgens) 
c. Facilities Station 41 Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Baitx and Donner) 
d. Long Range Financial Forecast Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Donner and Jorgens) 
e. Fire Chief Performance Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Baitx and Donner) 
 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
10.1 Brief information only reports related to meetings attended by a Director at District 

expense (Government Code Section 53232.3(d)) 
10.2 Questions and informational comments from Board members and Staff 
10.3 Fire Chief Updates 

10.3.1 Human Resources Update 
10.3.2 Delivery of New Apparatus 
10.3.3 Holiday Party 
10.3.4 North Orinda Shaded Fuel Break Update 

10.4 Communications Received 
10.5 Future Agenda Items 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District (“District”), in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), requests individuals who require 
special accommodations to access, attend and/or participate in District Board meetings due to a disability, to please contact the District Chief’s office, 
(925) 258-4599, at least one business day prior to the scheduled District Board meeting to ensure that we may assist you. 
 
Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the Moraga-Orinda Fire 
District to a majority of members of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspections 
at 1280 Moraga Way, Moraga, during normal business hours. 
 
I hereby certify that this agenda in its entirety was posted on November 15, 2019, at the Moraga and Orinda Fire Administration offices, 
Stations 41, 42, 43, 44, and 45. Agenda provided to the Moraga Town Office (Hacienda) and Orinda City Hall. 
 
 

 
Interim District Secretary/Clerk 
 



 

 

 

Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
May 15, 2019 

 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
1. The Board of Directors convened in Open Session at 6:40 p.m. on May 15, 2019 at the Sarge Littlehale Room, 

22 Orinda Way, Orinda, California.  President Danziger called the meeting to order and requested an 
attendance  roll call.   Present were the following Directors and Staff: 
 
Director Baitx President Danziger Admin. Services Director Gloriann Sasser 
Director Donner Dave Winnacker, Fire Chief HR Benefits Manager Christine Russell 
Director Jex (via teleconference) Jonathan Holtzman, District Counsel 
Director Jorgens   Patricia Edwards, Interim District Clerk  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  President 
Danziger closed the Public Comment. 
 

3. CLOSED SESSION 
3.1 Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
   (Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 

Name of case: Nowicki v. Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association et al., 
U.S. District Court, California Northern District Case No. 3:17-cv-00629-EDL 

 
4. RECONVENE THE MEETING 

 
President Danziger reconvened the regular business meeting of the Moraga-Orinda Fire District Board of 
Directors at 7:13 P.M. Present were the following Directors and Staff: 

 
Director Baitx Director Jorgens Dave Winnacker, Fire Chief  
Director Donner President Danziger Admin. Services Director Gloriann Sasser 
Director Jex (via teleconference) Jonathan Holtzman, District Counsel 
   Patricia Edwards, Interim District Clerk  

5. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION 
 
President Danziger stated that there was no reportable action taken in Closed Session. 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

President Danziger opened the public comment.   
 
Orinda’s Mayor Inga Miller congratulated the District on the opening of Station 43.  She offered Orinda as a 
resource on the housing bills and invited the District to add their support to Orinda’s letters to the legislature 
regarding the CASA Compact/AB 1487.  She stated that Orinda is watching AB 1487, SB 15, and SB 330.  If 
Orinda is designated as a ‘jobs rich community”, the new legislation would allow larger developments and one-
half parking space per home.  This may impact street parking and accessibility for the District.   
 
Melanie Light, Orinda resident, recommended that the Board use the projected 2020 surplus to aid residents in 
their fuels mitigation efforts.  Community efforts like the chipper program would help unite neighborhoods.    
 
Dan Detzner, Orinda resident, supports the Chipper program as a tool for bringing neighborhoods together.  He 
suggested that the District give some consideration to Berkeley’s cache program.  It is a small building which 
is set aside in each neighborhood and supplied with equipment for fire and earthquake emergencies.  
 
President Danziger closed the Public Comment. 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 
May 15, 2019 

7. CONSENT AGENDA
7.1 Meeting Minutes – April 17, 2019 (regular), April 17, 2019 (workshop) 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.2 Monthly Incident Report for April 2019 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.3 Monthly Check/Voucher Register – April 2019 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.4 Monthly Financial Report – March 2019 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.5 Quarterly Treasurer’s Investment Report 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.6 Wittman Board Report 3-31-19 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 

Director Jex questioned the Intergovernmental revenue and taxes for the current budget versus actual 
and noted a $500K shortfall.  Administrative Services Director (ASD) Sasser stated that the statement 
reflects financial information through March 31, 2019.  There are three more months to the fiscal year.  
The District will receive additional property taxes from the County in April and June.  She projects that 
revenue will exceed the budget in 2019.   

President Danziger questioned the expenditures for thermal imaging cameras in both 2019 and 2020.  
Chief Winnacker stated that some of the equipment is getting old and the District is taking advantage of 
trade-in savings.  There will be one camera per rig.   

President Danziger asked if the District is on track for the collection of ambulance fees.  ASD Sasser 
responded affirmatively.  President Danziger also asked if the fire trail grading is on property owned by 
Moraga or Orinda.  Chief Winnacker noted that the majority of the fire trails are on East Bay Municipal 
Utility District, East Bay Parks District, or private lands.   

Motion by Director Jex and seconded by Director Jorgens to approve the Consent Agenda.  Said motion 
carried a 5-0 voice vote (Ayes: Baitx, Donner, Jex, Jorgens, and Danziger; Noes: None; Absent: None) 
and all Consent Agenda items were approved.  There was no comment from the public. 

8. REGULAR AGENDA
8.1 Determine the Amount of the OPEB Trust Contribution and the Amount of the Pension Rate 

Stabilization Trust Contribution for Fiscal Year 2019 and Authorize the Transfer of District Funds 
to Complete the Trust Contributions  

Chief Winnacker provided the report.  The District participates in the Public Agency Retirement Services 
(PARS) Post-Employment Benefits Trust. The District’s PARS trust account includes money set-aside for 
other post - employment benefits (OPEB) retiree medical benefits and money set-aside for the pension 
rate stabilization program (PRSF) to prefund pension costs. The District makes annual contributions to 
both accounts. The Board has the authority to decide the amount of any contributions.  The Board 
considered this item at the February 20, 2019 Board meeting, and discussed deferring the decision until 
after the Long Range Financial Forecast (LRFF) was updated. The Board voted to defer discussion of the 
OPEB payment to the April 2019 Board meeting.  The fiscal year 2019 Budget includes $439,771 for the 
OPEB contribution. The June 30, 2018 OPEB actuarial valuation report calculated a trust contribution of 
$407,733.  Staff requests Board direction regarding the amount of the OPEB trust contribution.  The fiscal 
year 2019 Budget includes $1.1M for the pension rate stabilization program trust contribution. Staff 
requests Board direction regarding the amount of the pension rate stabilization program trust contribution. 
Once the Board has determined the amount of the OPEB and pension trust contributions, staff requests 
the Board authorize the transfer of District funds to complete the trust contributions. 

President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  
President Danziger closed the Public Comment. 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 
May 15, 2019 

Director Jex stated that he was comfortable with the recommended amount in the budget for both the 
OPEB and PRSF.  With the projected budget surplus in the LRFF, Director Jorgens noted that there are 
sufficient funds for this year for both OPEB and PRSF.  Chief Winnacker stated that the increased 
revenues and decreased expenditures allow for the full recommended contribution to both funds while 
continuing to add funds to the unrestricted reserve.  

Motion by Director Jorgens and seconded by Director Donner to authorize the actuarial amount of 
$407,733 to the OPEB trust contribution and $1.1M to the PRSF for Fiscal Year 2019 and Authorize the 
Transfer of District Funds to Complete the Trust Contributions.  Said motion carried a 5-0 voice vote 
(Ayes: Baitx, Donner, Jex, Jorgens, and Danziger; Noes: None; Absent: None).     

8.2 Approval of Salary Schedules Effective July 1, 2019 

Chief Winnacker provided the report.  Effective July 1, 2019, all employee classifications covered by 
Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) shall receive the following salary increases: Local 1230 – 3% 
wage increase + 2% equity adjustment; Local 2700 – 3% wage increase; and Moraga Orinda Fire Chief 
Officers’ Association – 3% wage increase.  The District also has employee classifications that are 
unrepresented and not covered by an MOU. Staff recommends unrepresented employees (except the 
Fire Chief) receive the same 3% wage increase as represented employees. This is consistent with 
previous fiscal years.   

President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  
President Danziger closed the Public Comment.  There was no discussion by the Board members. 

Motion by Director Jorgens and seconded by Director Donner to approve the Salary Schedules Effective 
July 1, 2019.  Said motion carried a 5-0 voice vote (Ayes: Baitx, Donner, Jex, Jorgens, and Danziger; 
Noes: None; Absent: None).     

8.3 Proposed Annual Operating Budget Fiscal Year 2020 

ASD Sasser provided the report.  Staff developed proposed goals, projections, and budget proposals 
based on the Strategic Plan and Business Plan.   Discretionary expenditures were discussed by the Board 
on April 17, 2019 in a public workshop to obtain direction and public input.  The proposed Budget projects 
General Fund revenue at $26.5M which is $802K or 3.1% more than the amount of General Fund revenue 
projected to be received in fiscal year 2019.  Total General Fund expenditures are projected to be $24.7M.  
Projected revenue exceeds nondiscretionary expenditures by $1.8M.  Staff is seeking Board direction 
regarding the excess.  General Fund revenue is projected to exceed 2019 by 3.1% primarily due to 
property taxes which are projected to increase 4.3%.  Ambulance fees are projected to increase 3.5%.  
Salaries and benefits expenditures are budgeted at $21.1M.  Operating expenses are budgeted at $2.5M.  
Transfers to Debt Service and Capital are budgeted at $1.1M.  Restricted reserve contributions for OPEB 
and PRST for 2020 will be determined by Board direction.  The proposed Budget projects a Debt Service 
Fund surplus of $244K, and a Capital Projects Fund deficit of $174K.   Projected unrestricted fund balance 
in the General Fund as of June 30, 2020 is $9.3M, in the Debt Service Fund $3.5M, and in the Capital 
Projects Fund $4.4M.   

There are 78.7 authorized positions in the proposed Budget including the fuels mitigation unit and 
emergency preparedness coordinator.  The safety roster has funding for 57 positions.  By 2020, all 
positions will be filled.  Salaries are proposed at $10.1M (an 11% increase over 2019) due to 5% salary 
increase and increase in staffing to fill the 57 safety positions.  Retirement costs are $5.4M (14% increase 
over 2019) due to increase in permanent salaries and increase in number of filled Firefighter Paramedic 
positions.  Overtime is projected at $2.4M.  This is a decrease from FY2019 due to the hiring of additional 
Firefighter Paramedics.  Health insurance is projected at $1.2 M with retiree health insurance at $925,000.  
Workers’ compensation insurance costs are projected to increase $142K or 16%.  The proposed Budget 
does not include contributions for OPEB and PRST for 2020 pending Board decision. 

Director Jorgens noted that the proposed Budget did not include contributions to OPEB or PRTF.  Chief 
Winnacker stated that this deviates from what is identified in the Long Range Financial Forecast (LRFF) 
as the recommended contributions to OPEB and PRST.  Director Jorgens noted that if the District made 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 4 
May 15, 2019 
 

 

 

 

the full contributions in 2020 that the District would be in a $1.1M deficit and the General Fund balance 
would decrease.  Director Jex stated that the budget needs to include the OPEB and PRST contributions 
and at a rate similar to what was contributed in 2019 per the LRFF.  He recommended that these amounts 
be added to the operating budget before it is released. Director Jex noted that the operating budget is 
released to the public and should reflect that there is no addition to the General Reserve if the required 
OPEB and PRST contributions are made per the LRFF.  He stated that omitting this information is 
misleading.  Director Jex noted that the Board deferred the OPEB and PRST contributions until it was 
known that the funds were available.  This is what was done in last year’s operating budget.  The Board 
may make a change at mid-year and decide the amount to contribute to OPEB and PRST.  President 
Danziger paraphrased Director Jex’s comments and said that the $1.8M is not a surplus and should be 
shown in the budget as a deficit.  Director Jorgens agreed and noted that this is a set of ongoing 
obligations and should be put in the budget as a place holder to indicate that the District needs to set 
aside funds to meet these obligations.  Director Jex concurred that this is a recognized obligation and 
approved in the ten-year financial forecast.  President Danziger asked if the Board can allocate the surplus 
funds to OPEB and PRST and then change the decision about the allocation.  Chief Winnacker noted that 
allocation of the surplus is a policy question.  The term ‘surplus’ is not accurate.  A more accurate term is 
‘discretionary’.  Contributions to OPEB and PRST are in conformance with the LRFF.  He added that there 
is a conflicting request from the Board to establish a 50% unrestricted reserve.   Staff requests Board 
direction on which policy to follow.  Director Jorgens stated that the Budget should reflect what a normal 
OPEB and PRST contribution would be.  Director Donner noted that the Board can earmark the funds.  
Director Jorgens added that budget earmarks do not authorize the expenditure.  Director Jex stated that 
if the expenditures are reflected in the budget, the expectation is that the payment will be made.  Chief 
Winnacker added that to include the full actuarial payment to OPEB and PRST requires $2.56M which 
results in a $700,000 deficit in 2020.  Director Jex concurred that these figures are correct and that the 
Board will review the District’s financial status in January and decide in May what the actual contributions 
will be.  President Danziger stated that he needs to hear the rest of the budget before deciding.   
 
ASD Sasser introduced the Budget sections.  President Danziger questioned the process for input into 
the description of the Board’s Standard Level of Performance.  Counsel Holtzman recommended that the 
Board provide guidance to staff and that the Board submit their changes to staff in writing.  ASD Sasser 
stated that the budget, by state law, must be adopted by October 1, 2019 but it is not submitted to the 
state.  It is part of the District’s business processes.  Director Jorgens said the Budget seems to be policy 
and not money.  He questioned the philosophy part.  Counsel Holtzman stated that most governmental 
budget documents included language and financial components.  Everything in the adopted budget is 
subject to Board approval.  He recommended that the Board provide one-way comments to the Chief.  If 
requested changes are not in the final document, the Board can amend the language in the adoption 
process.  Director Jorgens noted that, unlike the Departments, the Board’s Goals and Objectives do not 
have any economic impact on the District.  Director Jex said the Board can determine what should be 
included in the Budget document.  ASD Sasser stated that the Board should provide this information in 
the Budget.  Director Donner suggested a simple Mission Statement.  President Danziger suggested that 
the Board of Directors send their comments to the Chief.  President Danziger asked if he could submit 
changes in the text for other Divisions.  The Chief responded affirmatively.  Counsel Holtzman stated that, 
ultimately, the entire Budget is the Board’s document. 
 
ASD Sasser provided the Finance and Administration Division report.  The Budget is $1.2M and includes 
the Fire Chief’s contingency of $100,000.  Information Technology (IT) is outsourced to a third party 
provider and is budgeted at $170,000.  Changes in IT services were identified and IT savings are projected 
for 2020.  President Danziger asked who performs the telestaff management.  ASD Sasser responded 
that Definitive Networks, Inc. (DNI) upgrades District software and District data is stored on DNI’s cloud 
servers.    
 
HR Benefits Manager Christine Russell provided the report for the Human Resources Division.  She 
reviewed the Goals and Objectives.  President Danziger asked if the sexual harassment training pertains 
to Directors.  Counsel Holtzman responded no.  President Danziger asked about nametags and badges.  
Chief Winnacker stated that the District’s identification cards are being upgraded and they will be provided 
to the Board once the design is finalized.  
 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 5 
May 15, 2019 
 

 

 

 

Chief Winnacker provided the report for the Fire Prevention Division.  He reviewed the Standard Level of 
Performance, Goals and Objectives including adopting the 2018 California Fire Code and associated 
MOFD Ordinance.  He noted that anything that MOFD adopts also has to be adopted by Orinda, Moraga, 
and Contra Costa County.  Director Jorgens questioned the future of the fuels mitigation and chipping 
programs.  Chief Winnacker stated that the Budget currently includes a four-person fuels mitigation crew 
with one program manager who are all part time.  President Danziger asked if they only work during the 
fire season.  Chief Winnacker stated that planning work can be done in the winter but some work is 
seasonal and wet weather is also a factor to consider.     
 
Battalion Chief Jerry Lee presented the report for the Emergency Preparedness Program ($178,000 
proposed budget); Emergency Medical Services ($132,000); and the Support Services ($30,500 
proposed budget) Divisions.  He reviewed the Standard Level of Performance and the 2020 Goals and 
Objectives for each section.  Building costs for the District include: $11,400 for the Administration Building; 
$44,100 for Station 41; $40,370 for Station 42; $21,650 for Station 43; $32,800 for Station 44; and $49,170 
for Station 45.   
 
Battalion Chief (BC) Matt Nichols reviewed the Standard Level of Performance and 2020 Goals and 
Objectives for the Emergency Operations Division.  The projected budget is $17,948,000.  President 
Danziger questioned the data sets for the Operations Division.  BC Nichols stated that staff receive daily 
data including response times and turnout times.  Data are analyzed to determine any discrepancies, the 
reasons for the discrepancies, and mitigate any issues.  Chief Winnacker stated that they are working on 
identifying the trends in order to allocate the resources to resolve it.  Director Jorgens asked about the 
increase in the cost of services and supplies.  Chief Winnacker stated that equipment is needed for new 
staff.  Some equipment needs repair or replacement.  President Danziger questioned the fire trail grading 
on public land.  Chief Winnacker stated that EBMUD does some of the grading.  Director Jorgens stated 
private landowners are required to maintain the fire trail.  President Danziger asked why MOFD does it 
for private landowners.  Chief Winnacker stated that MOFD is not required but does some of the fire trail 
grading to insure that the District has access to the area when needed.  President Danziger asked if the 
HOA that owns part of the fire road is required to maintain it.  Chief Winnacker stated it would be necessary 
to review the covenants and permits when they were built to determine their responsibility.   
 
BC Matt Nichols reviewed the Standard Level of Performance and 2020 Goals and Objectives for the 
Communications Division.  The projected budget is $312,290.  The District modems need to be replaced.    
The portable radios need to be replaced as they are no longer supported by Mortorola.  Director Jorgens 
noted that there is poor Wi-Fi reception in some areas.  BC Nichols stated that the rigs are equipped with 
modems that produce Wi-Fi for the areas which they are in.  Director Donner asked if there are any radio 
‘dead’ spots in the District.  BC Nichols stated that there are a few in Canyon.  There are specific repeater 
channels for the Caldecott Tunnel if the District needs to work with Oakland. 
 
BC Nichols reviewed the Standard Level of Performance and 2020 Goals and Objectives for the 
Apparatus Division.  The estimated budget is $276,000.  The Type VI vehicle should arrive in late July.  
Chief Winnacker stated that the cost of the vehicles ordered at the April Board meeting are included in 
the 2019 budget but the upfitting is included in the 2020 budget except for the BC vehicles.   
 
Battalion Chief Steve Gehling presented the Standard Level of Performance and 2020 Goals and 
Objectives for the Training Division.  The projected budget is $152,900.  He stated that the District plans 
to increase the low frequency, high-risk exercises.  Director Jorgens asked who staffs the station when 
the firefighters are at off site trainings.  Chief Winnacker stated that there are three options depending on 
the type and length of training, training location, and how many staff are involved.  President Danziger 
asked if the training area behind Station 41 is adequate.  BC Gehling stated that there are limited 
scenarios that can be conducted at Station 41.  Training is noisy and may present a problem when the 
nearby housing project is completed.   
 
ASD Sasser addressed the Capital Projects Funds Division.  The proposed expenditure is $297,200.  It 
includes a $150,000 contingency for unplanned capital needs, the BC vehicle, Station 45 basement 
drainage improvements, Station 44 improvements, and thermal imaging cameras.  Director Jorgens 
stated that the contingency seems large.  Chief Winnacker stated that any item which exceeds $100K 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 6 
May 15, 2019 
 

 

 

 

must be presented to the Board for approval.  The Board would be apprised of any unanticipated 
expenditures.  Director Jorgens stated that the 50% contingency for Capital Project Funds is high.      
 
President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  
President Danziger closed the Public Comment.   
 
President Danziger noted several items for discussion: distribution of surplus; workshop items; OPEB 
and PRST contributions; staffing; and fuels mitigation.  President Danziger asked if the fuels mitigation 
aides and supervisor are included in the 2020 budget.  Chief Winnacker replied that two aides, two 
supervisors and one manager are in the 2020 budget.  President Danziger asked about the identified 
parcels in Moraga and Orinda which have not been mitigated.  The District needs to enforce the MOFD 
Ordinance.  He does not support MOFD efforts on city owned properties and this position should be 
clearly communicated.  He wants Moraga and Orinda to be told that they need to mitigate their properties.  
Chief Winnacker stated that the properties are not in priority order but they do provide an immediate 
threat to adjacent homes and represent large receptive fuel beds.  President Danziger stated that MOFD 
needs to clearly communicate that they need to do fuels mitigation.  Director Jex asked why the city and 
town would be exempt from furls mitigation compliance.  Chief Winnacker replied that they are not.  
Director Jorgens asked how they can be forced to comply.  Counsel Holtzman stated that he will research 
that question.  Director Jorgens said that the residents may feel that they pay fire protection fees so 
MOFD should be responsible for the mitigation.  Director Donner noted that they have Public Works 
Departments to maintain their properties.  Chief Winnacker stated that he is in constant communication 
with city and town staff but he is not involved in a political discussion with elected officials.  Chief 
Winnacker stated that he will continue to engage staff.  He suggested that the Board liaison to these 
agencies talk to the elected officials.  President Danziger suggested that a letter be sent.  Director Jorgens 
added that the letter should include the properties, guidelines, and expectations.  Director Jex suggested 
that the letter be sent by the Fire Marshal.  Chief Winnacker stated that it is more appropriate for the letter 
to come from the Board and be signed by the Board.  Director Donner asked if the Board liaisons have 
met with elected officials.  Director Jorgens supported the letter as a starting point for the discussion.  
President Danziger suggested that a letter be drafted and discussed at the next meeting.  Director 
Jorgens suggested that a letter to the Councils include information about the requirements for fuels 
mitigation.  Chief Winnacker stated that the information has been provided to Moraga and Orinda staff.  
Counsel Holtzman stated that the Board could not take action at this meeting because the item was not 
agendized.   
 
Director Baitx questioned the increase in staffing from 17 to 19 and asked if the District is running 19 staff 
per operational period.  Chief Winnacker stated that there are 17 staff on duty per day.  Director Baitx 
asked if MOFD is budgeted for 19 positions.  Chief Winnacker stated that there are two additional 
positions authorized as floaters.  Director Baitx said that MOFD has the budget for 19.  Chief Winnacker 
stated that the current policy is 17 per day.  The additional staffing was in place from 2006 to 2013.  
Director Donner stated that MOFD is budgeted for 19 per day.  Chief Winnacker stated that the District is 
budgeted and authorized for 17 positions per day.  Director Baitx asked for clarification on the Budget 
staffing.  Chief Winnacker stated that the two additional positions are authorized as floaters for vacation 
relief in an attempt to reduce overtime.   The budget is not providing for more than 17 positions per day.    
Chief Winnacker stated that, on any given day, there are always additional people off on injury, sick leave, 
or vacation.  Chief Winnacker stated that increasing staff to 19 per day requires Board authorization.  
Director Donner expressed confusion about the staffing numbers.  Chief Winnacker expects full 
authorized staffing by early 2020.   The two floaters would be used for vacation relief to fill vacancies.  
Chief Winnacker stated that vacation relief would be eliminated if the Board authorizes 19 positions.    
President Danziger asked if the District has experienced a day with full staffing and two floaters.  Chief 
Winnacker replied no.     
 
Local 1230 representative Mark McCullah recommended that the Board review the SAFER grant staffing.  
Chief Winnacker stated that the SAFER grant did not increase staffing from 17 to 19.  Director Jorgens 
added that the Board defeated the motion to increase staffing to 19 for the SAFER grant as a condition 
to accepting the grant.  The grant was approved for overtime and floaters.  President Danziger stated 
that, in an ideal world, more staffing would be preferred.  He noted that the Grant is almost done.  He 
would support 19 positions if the District could make it happen financially.  Director Jex stated that he 
was not sure that the grant was a good thing.  It changed the structure and pattern for personnel.  The 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 7 
May 15, 2019 
 

 

 

 

District does not have the funds now for staffing.  Additional staff is not justified if it does not improve 
incident response time.  Director Donner added that all cities which had previously cut services have now 
restored them.  Director Jorgens said the question is what are MOFD’s priorities.  Two full time staff on 
the ambulance does not help North Orinda response time.  It does not solve the problem of response 
time in the outer areas.  He asked if a very marginal service increase is more important than a surge in 
fire prevention in the District.  Director Donner noted that many Orinda residents are not aware that Orinda 
does not have a staffed ambulance like Moraga does.  Director Jorgens stated that there have been no 
complaints from Orinda residents regarding poor ambulance service.  Director Jorgens stated that an 
ambulance from Station 16 in Lafayette is faster than one in the District.  Director Donner stated that it 
occasionally leaves the District vulnerable.  The Board discussed the potential impact on insurance.  
Director Jorgens said that his insurance is more concerned with fuels mitigation than ambulance service.  
Director Baitx stated that he would like to see two floaters be added as medics to Station 45.  President 
Danziger stated that it was important but questioned how the District would pay for it.        
 
Director Donner asked if the District would incur overtime costs if the two floaters were sent to Station 45.  
Chief Winnacker said it would be marginally less expensive than the $1.45M costs because overtime is 
less expensive.  Chief Winnacker stated that the important number for the third ambulance usage is the 
transports.  The time on task of available time for year to date is .15% for Medic 42 and .18% for Medic 
43.  The Board discussed the possibility of changing the policy so that AMR is contacted for service after 
the District’s second ambulance is dispatched instead of after the third ambulance.  Directors Donner and 
Baitx supported this policy change.  Chief Winnacker stated that it could be done at Board’s direction and 
would reduce maintenance costs, training costs, but increase the charge to residents.  Director Jorgens 
stated that all residents should have the same cost for transport service regardless of who responded.  
President Danziger asked how often the agreement is reviewed.  Chief Winnacker said it is a mutual aid 
agreement.  Chief Winnacker stated that part of the reason why the District was formed was in response 
to the resident’s frustration with response time for ambulances coming from Concord.  He suggested that 
the District needs to keep the third ambulance in the District as a back-up vehicle.  Director Donner stated 
that cancelling the third ambulance provides better medical service and fire service to the District.  Chief 
Winnacker discussed options in terms of subsidizing the transport cost to the District, minor savings for 
medical equipment, surplusing the rig, and realizing a slight reduction in engine response time.  The 
Board discussed several scenarios regarding third ambulance calls.  President Danziger stated that the 
bigger question is the whole service model which may need to be discussed. 
 
Local 1230 representative Mark McCullah stated that the issue is really about risk.  From a risk standpoint, 
it is a risk having no one available in the District when one is needed.   
 
Director Jorgens summarized the budget questions into three issues:  OPEB and PRST, fuels mitigation, 
and staffing.  Chief Winnacker stated that Station 41 was included in response to Board concerns of using 
debt financing for capital construction.  He does not anticipate any problems with securing financing for 
that project.   President Danziger noted that additional funds for fire prevention activities were not 
discussed.  Chief Winnacker stated that the greatest return from investment from a prevention standpoint 
is fuels mitigation, Fire Wise assessments, and requests for chipper service.  From a prevention 
standpoint, one approach is to harness the gardeners as fuels mitigation workers.  He noted that when 
the District provided work inside the resident’s fence line, the residents get fussy and work was slowed.  
He recommended focusing on outreach and education to guide residents to best practices to target fuels 
mitigation.  The relatively low cost chipper has a high impact.  One of the biggest concerns from residents 
is that they do not know where to start.  The District does have a list of contractors who can perform the 
work.  The Board discussed the chipper program, the fuels mitigation aides, and the fire prevention aides.  
President Danziger stated that the Board needs to prioritize which fire prevention expenditures would 
secure the best impact.  Chief Winnacker stated that the best results would be achieved through a year 
round fuels mitigation program.  Director Jex cautioned against adding additional projects and expanding 
multiple projects with unskilled staff in addition to the management and resources for the North Orinda 
Shaded Fuel Break Project (NOSFB).  He strongly recommended coordinating what is included in the 10 
year forecast with the operating budget.   
 
Director Jex signed off from the teleconference at 10:07 p.m. 
 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 8 
May 15, 2019 
 

 

 

 

Director Jorgens discussed expanding the chipper program.  Chief Winnacker stated that the program 
could be expanded but he is requesting Board direction on how to allocate the limited resources.  Counsel 
Holtzman stated that the Board needs to allocate funds but does not have to specify the exact use for the 
purpose of the budget.  Director Jorgens noted that there is $150,000 in the capital budget. Chief 
Winnacker noted the discussion for funding OPEB and PRST, staffing, and fire prevention are competing 
priorities.  Director Jorgens stated that the District could use reserves.  Chief Winnacker noted that this 
would be in conflict with another Board goal of achieving 50% in unrestricted reserves. 
 
Local 1230 representative Mark McCullah stated that the Board should read the intent of the SAFER 
grant.  He quoted a section of the grant to support his position.   
 
Director Donner expressed interest in opening Medic 45 for the safety of the community and the 
firefighters.  President Danziger concurred but expressed concern about the funding.    
 
Vince Wells, Vice President of Local 1230, supports the District’s efforts for fire prevention and fuels 
mitigation.  There should be a balance and he supports increasing staffing to fill the ambulance.     
 
Director Donner made a motion to stop the third ambulance effective immediately.  Counsel Holtzman 
recommended that it is not a budget item and should be agendized.  President Danziger suggested 
contributing $1.8M to OPEB and PRST or some other amount as the full actuarial cost is $2.5M.  Director 
Jorgens asked if the District can have a deficit budget.  Counsel Holtzman stated that the District could 
use reserves or budget $1.8M.  He noted that the LRFF does not support deficit spending.  Director 
Jorgens recommended allocating $1.8M to OPEB and PRST and adding $150,000 to fuels mitigation 
from the CAP budget and the Chief’s contingency.   
 
Director Jorgens made a motion to put $1.8M in OPEB and PRST and add $150,000 to fuels mitigation 
from the CAP budget and the Chief’s contingency.  Director Baitx did not support the $150,000 for fuels 
mitigation.   President Danziger seconded the motion.  Counsel Holtzman recommended that the Board 
make two separate motions. 
 
Director Jorgens’ motion was amended to allocate $559,108 to OPEB and the balance of the $1.8M 
($1,240,892) to PRST was seconded by President Danziger.  Said motion carried a 4-0-1 voice vote 
(Ayes: Baitx, Donner, Jorgens, and Danziger; Noes: None; Absent: Jex).     
 
Director Jorgens made a motion to reallocate a total of $150,000 from the CAP budget and the Chief’s 
contingency funds to enhance MOFD’s fuels mitigation project.  The Chief has the authority to allocate 
the amount from each fund.  Director Donner asked if fuels mitigation includes fire prevention.  Chief 
Winnacker stated that it does not.  Fire prevention is specific to Fire Wise and nonpunitive assessments.  
Fuels mitigation is specific to the chipper program.  The motion was seconded by President Danziger.  
Said motion carried a 3-1-1 voice vote (Ayes: Donner, Jorgens, and Danziger; Noes: Baitx; Absent: Jex).    
 
President Danziger stated that the District does not have the funds for additional staffing in the 2020 
budget.   The decision will be deferred to a later date and will be revisited in the future.  
 
President Danziger noted comments received from Steve Cohn by email on May 15, 2019 for the record. 
 

8.4  Resolution 19-05 Establishing the 2019/20 Fire Flow Tax Rates for the Orinda and Moraga Service 
Zones 

  
Chief Winnacker provided the report.  Every year the District is required to set the rate for the Fire Flow 
Tax in each of the District’s two service zones.  In order to place the tax on the County Assessor’s rolls 
for fiscal year 2019/20, the tax rate must be established by Board action and then levied against each 
parcel.  The current year FY2018/19 Fire Flow Tax Rate was established at six cents ($.06) in both 
Moraga ($536,303) and Orinda ($547,942) for a total of $1,084,245.  Staff recommends the Board adopt 
Resolution 19-05 adopting the Fire Flow Tax rate of six cents ($.06) in both the Moraga and Orinda 
service zones.   

 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 9 
May 15, 2019 
 

 

 

 

President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  President 
Danziger closed the Public Comment.   
 
Director Jorgens stated that this is a complicated issue and some residents feel that the tax burdens for 
Moraga and Orinda are not equal.  President Danziger stated that some citizens do not understand the 
concept of ‘fire district’ and that MOFD provides service to both Moraga and Orinda and does not allocate 
its services by city.     
 
President Danziger read an email from Orinda resident Steve Cohn (dated April 15, 2019) (Attachment 
A, last paragraph) into the record.   
 
Richard Olsen, Moraga resident, stated that Mr. Cohn’s analysis is false.  He stated that it would be a 
violation of the requirements for the approval of the formation of the District to charge Moraga residents 
more than Orinda residents for the District’s services.     
 
Motion by President Danziger and seconded by Director Jorgens to approve item 8.5 Resolution 19-05 
Establishing the 2019/20 Fire Flow Tax Rates for the Orinda and Moraga Service Zones.  Said motion 
carried a 4-0-1 voice vote (Ayes: Baitx, Donner, Jorgens, and Danziger; Noes: None; Absent: Jex). 
 

8.5 CASA Compact Update 
 

District Counsel Holtzman provided the report.  He stated that AB 1487, which provides the funding 
mechanism for the CASA housing bill, has been amended.  There were several changes to the Housing 
Alliance for the Bay Area (HABA).  The most recent amendment removed the number of appointments 
to HABA from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and from the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) and left a ‘blank’.  There is no direct funding mechanism for the bill other than what 
the HABA board might place tax measures on county ballots.   
 
Director Jorgens asked who will decide where the funds will be spent versus where it is raised.  Counsel 
Holtzman stated that the bill could be placed on any ballot and the funds could be allocated regionally.    
 
Dan DeBusschere, Orinda resident, stated that AB 1487 is a threat to the District’s future revenue.  The 
bill is currently in Appropriations in a suspense file.  There could be substantial state liabilities for start-
up expenses and may take 2-3 years to establish.  At the May 2, 2019 Contra Costa Mayors’ Conference 
meeting, the mayors voted unanimously to oppose AB 1487.  Mr. DeBusschere suggested that the District 
combine their efforts with the Mayors’ Conference to oppose the legislation.  He provided the Board with 
a suggested Resolution (Attachment B).  He suggested that the resolution be on next month’s MOFD 
agenda so that the Board can take action on the item.  Director Jorgens suggested that the District co-
sign the letter with the City of Orinda.  President Danziger stated that it would be on the June agenda. 
 

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
9.1 Finance Committee (Directors Danziger and Jorgens) 

No report. 
9.2 Audit Ad Hoc Committee (Director Jex) 

No report. 
9.3 Long Range Financial Plan Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Donner and Jorgens) 

No report. 
9.4 Facilities Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Baitx and Donner) 

No report. 
9.5 Fire Chief Performance Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Baitx and Donner) 

No report.  
 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
10.1 Brief information only reports related to meetings attended by a Director at District expense 

(Government Code Section 53232.3(d)) 
Director Donner reported that he attended the Orinda School Board meeting.  He reported that they have 
cleared the creek area behind OIF and would like to partner with the District for the chipper program. 
 

7.1A



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 10 
May 15, 2019 
 

 

 

 

10.2 Questions and informational comments from Board members and Staff 
No report. 

10.3 Fire Chief Updates  
HR Benefits Manager Christine Russell reported on the District’s recruitment status. The 
firefighter/paramedic opening closed on May 1.  To date, 147 applications were received.   The potential 
candidate count decreased after applying the minimum qualifications.  Oral boards are scheduled for  
May 21-23, 2019.  The goal is to finalize the eligible candidates by September 1, 2019 so that they can 
enroll in the Berkeley academy on October 1, 2019.    There are four applications to date for the internal 
Captain position which closes on May 26, 2019.  The Plans Examiner/Inspector position is open.  The 
District has contracted with a third party service to provide plans examiner/fire inspector services during 
the recruitment for this position to deal with a significant backlog of plans.  Chief Winnacker noted that 
there is a small pool of qualified candidates who can perform this service.     
Chief Winnacker provided an update on Station 43.  The building is complete and staff is preparing a final 
punch list.  The Grand Opening will be held on June 15, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. 
Chief Winnacker attended four public outreach events.  Two community Fire Safety Workshops are 
scheduled for May 23, 2019 (Orinda) and June 5, 2019 (Moraga).  The deadline to comply with the Wildfire 
Risk Reduction Requirement is June 15, 2019.   
Chief Winnacker provided an update on the status of fuels mitigation.  The chipping program is underway.   
Assessments were conducted along major evacuation routes including Moraga Way, Miner Road, 
Aberdeen, and Gloriettta to assess fuels mitigation compliance.  Approximately 80% of the area is not in 
compliance.  He noted that parcel owners have received ample notification regarding their requirements.  
Homes which are not in compliance will be red tagged.  With receipt of a red tag, property owners have 
seven days to fix the issue.  If the work is not completed, the District will contract to perform the work and 
a lien will be placed against the property to pay for the work.  The cost of the lien is carried by the county 
until paid by the property owner.  Director Jorgens noted that the District should be careful with young, 
somewhat inexperienced staff.  The Chief added that the District accepts some degree of risk with part 
time, nonbenefitted staff but the staff is operating under direction.  President Danziger asked if 
suppression crews were conducting some of the inspections.  Chief Winnacker stated that they are not.     

10.4 Communications Received 
Chief Winnacker reported that complimentary correspondence was received regarding the District’s EMS 
service.  One complaint was received but it was determined to be sent in error.   

10.5 Future Agenda Items 
Director Donner requested that the third ambulance be placed on the next agenda.   
President Danziger requested that an action item regarding the CASA Compact resolution be included. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
At 11:18 p.m., Director Jorgens motion to adjourn the meeting was seconded by Director Baitx. Said motion 
carried a 4-0-1 vote (Ayes: Baitx, Donner, Jorgens, and Danziger; Noes: None; Absent: Jex). 
 
Attachment A:  Email received from Steve Cohn on May 15, 2019 
Attachment B:  Dan DeBusschere’s handouts to the Board – a proposed MOFD resolution regarding AB 1487.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
For an audio recording of this and other Board meetings, please visit the MOFD District Board Meeting webpage 

http://www.mofd.org/board/meetings 

7.1A

http://www.mofd.org/board/meetings


 

 

 

Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
October 16, 2019 

 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
1. The Board of Directors convened in Closed Session at 5:37 p.m. on October 16, 2019 at the Mosaic Room, 

2100 Donald Drive, Moraga. California. President Danziger called the meeting to order and requested an 
attendance roll call.   Present were the following Directors and Staff: 
 
Director Baitx Director Jorgens  
Director Donner President Danziger Jonathan Holtzman, District Counsel 
Director Jex  Dave Winnacker, Fire Chief   Patricia Edwards, Interim District Clerk 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  President 
Danziger closed the Public Comment. 
 

3. CLOSED SESSION 

3.1 Conference with Legal Counsel – Potential Litigation 
 Potential litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government Code Section 54956.9 
3.2 Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 

(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
Pacific-Mountain Contractors of California, Inc. v. Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Contra Costa 
County Superior Court C18-02124 

3.3 Conference with Labor Negotiator 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) 
Agency Designated Representative: Jonathan Holtzman 
Employee Organization: Local 2700 United Clerical, Technical & Specialized Employees 

 
4. RECONVENE THE MEETING 

4.1 Call the Meeting to Order 
4.2 Pledge of Allegiance 
4.3 Introduction of Fire Marshal Robert Montaghami and Fuels Mitigation Manager Jeffrey Isaacs 
 
President Danziger reconvened the regular business meeting of the Moraga-Orinda Fire District Board of 
Directors at 7:00 p.m. Present were the following Directors and Staff: 
 
Director Baitx Director Jorgens     Admin. Services Director Gloriann Sasser 
Director Donner   President Danziger  HR Benefits Manager Christine Russell 
Director Jex   Dave Winnacker, Fire Chief  Jonathan Holtzman, District Counsel 
   Patricia Edwards, Interim District Clerk 
 
Chief Winnacker introduced Jeffrey Isaacs as the new Fuels Mitigation Manger.  He has 20 plus years of 
experience with CalFire in fuels reduction and wildfire firefighting.  Mr. Isaacs stated that his goal is to be a 
“leader in fuels reduction”.  Chief Winnacker noted that Fire Marshal Robert Montaghami has resigned due to 
family issues.  The position will be reposted and staff will explore internal options to fill this position. 
 

5. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION 

 
President Danziger reported that no reportable action was taken by the Board on: item 3.1 Potential Litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (d) (2) of Government Code Section 54956.9; item 3.2 Existing Litigation (Paragraph 
(1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9); and item 3.3 Labor Negotiator (Government Code Section 54957.6). 

 
 

7.1B



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 2 
October 16, 2019 
 

 

 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
President Danziger opened the public comment.   
 
Melanie Light, an Orinda resident, discussed fire safety issues which occurred during the recent PG&E Public 
Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS).  There was no power and no access to phones in the event of an emergency.  
She noted that City paving work continued during the high fire danger and power outage.  She asked the Fire 
Department to urge the City Council to be proactive in the community during Red Flag warnings. 
 
President Danziger closed the Public Comment. 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
7.1 Meeting Minutes – September 18, 2019 (regular) 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.2 Monthly Incident Report for September 2019 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.3 Monthly Check/Voucher Register – September 2019 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
7.4 Monthly Financial Report – August 2019 

Staff Recommendation: Approve and File 
 

Director Jex questioned the Elderd Brothers expenditure.  Chief Winnacker stated that is associated with 
the North Orinda Shaded Fuel Break (NOSFB) Project.  President Danziger questioned the $12,565 
expenditure for Rescue Router (sewer line replacement).  Chief Winnacker explained that this 
expenditure was incurred in order to bring the wash pad at Station 42 into compliance per the Contra 
Costa County Sanitary District. 
 
Motion by Director Jorgens and seconded by Director Donner to approve Consent Agenda items 7.1 
through 7.4.   Said motion carried a 5-0 voice vote (Ayes: Baitx, Jex, Jorgens, Donner, and Danziger; 
Noes: None; Absent: None).  
 

8. REGULAR AGENDA 
8.1 Peter J. Nowicki v. Moraga-Orinda Fire District Appeal Order Affirmed in Favor of the Moraga-

Orinda Fire District  
 
Counsel Holtzman summarized the case.  Former Fire Chief Nowicki retired in January 2009.  In 
September 2015, the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) reduced 
Nowicki’s pension retroactive to his date of retirement, based on the finding that he had caused his “final 
average salary … to be improperly increased at the time of retirement” in violation of the Government 
Code.  In his suit against the District, Nowicki claimed breach of his employment contract, breach of the 
duty of good faith and fair dealing and estoppel.  He claimed that if CCCERA were successful in reducing 
his pension, then the Fire District was responsible for making up the difference.  The Superior Court 
dismissed Nowicki’s case against the District finding that he had not filed a government claim (as required 
by the Government Claims Act) and also had not stated a claim against the District on any cause of 
action.  The Superior Court did not dismiss Nowicki’s case against CCCERA and it is continuing.  On 
August 27, 2019, the Court of Appeal affirmed the dismissal of Nowicki’s case against the District. The 
Court of Appeal’s decision is now final.  He added that the District is entitled to its costs on the appeal 
which do not include attorney’s fees.   
  
President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  There 
were no comments from the Board.  President Danziger closed the Public Comment.   
 

8.2 Approval of OPEB Valuation Report as of June 30, 2019 
 
ASD Sasser provided the report.  Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 requires 
the District to complete an actuarial valuation of the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) plan. As a 
result, the District contracted with GovInvest to complete an actuarial report calculating the long-term cost 
associated with the District’s OPEB plan.  A draft GASB 75 OPEB Valuation Report as of June 30, 2019 

7.1B



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 3 
October 16, 2019 
 

 

 

 

was presented to the Board on September 18, 2019. In 2015, the District established an OPEB trust 
account. The purpose of the trust account is to accumulate funds for payment of future retiree health 
insurance obligations. The District has made the annual required contribution every year since FY2015. 
As a result of the pre-funding and the cap on retiree medical benefits, the District’s net OPEB liability has 
decreased.  The balance in the OPEB trust account as of June 30, 2019 is $1,358,338.  The prior actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2018 measured the net OPEB liability at $15,379,385.  As of June 30, 2019, the 
net OPEB liability is $14,850,637, a decrease of $528,748 or 3.4%. The plan is 8.38% funded.  It is 
assumed that the District will continue to make the annual required contribution.   
 
President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  
President Danziger closed the Public Comment.  There was no discussion by the Board. 
 
Motion by Director Jex and seconded by Director Jorgens to approve the OPEB Valuation Report as of 
June 30, 2019.  Said motion carried a 5-0 voice vote (Ayes: Baitx, Jex, Jorgens, Donner, and Danziger; 
Noes: None; Absent: None).  
 

8.3 Discussion of Standing and Ad Hoc Board Committees 

 
Counsel Holtzman provided the report.  He explained that a committee created by formal action of a 
legislative body (the Board) is itself a legislative body and subject to the Brown Act’s open meeting 
requirements.  An advisory committee composed solely of members of a legislative body constituting less 
than a quorum of the legislative body is not a legislative body unless it is a standing committee that has 
"a continuing subject matter jurisdiction, or a meeting schedule fixed by charter, ordinance, resolution or 
formal action of a legislative body." An ad hoc committee is comprised of less than a quorum of the 
legislative body, has a specific project or set of circumstances, is not ongoing, and is not subject to the 
Brown Act.  A standing committee can vote and take action and is subject to the Brown Act.  He discussed 
the current Board’s four committees: Audit, Facilities, Long Range Planning, and Chief’s Evaluation.   
 
Counsel Holtzman noted that the Audit Committee is comprised of one Board member, is not a 
committee, and does not require compliance with the Brown Act.  Counsel Holtzman recommended 
disbanding the Audit Committee.   If the Board established an Audit Standing Committee with a second 
Board member, the Brown Act applies.  The Board discussed options for an Audit Committee.  Counsel 
Holtzman stated that Board members could meet with the auditors provided there was not a Board 
quorum.   
 
Kymberleigh Korpus, Moraga’s Vice Mayor, suggested that the District establish an Ad Hoc Audit 
Committee, with President Danziger as a member, established for a particular project for one year.  It 
could be reestablished the following year with a new project.  Moraga has an Audit and Finance Ad Hoc 
Committee which complies with the Brown Act.   
 
Director Jorgens noted that the District has a new auditor and suggested continuing the Audit Committee.  
President Danziger could be added to the Audit Committee which would retain its Ad Hoc status with the 
purpose to give guidance to the new auditors about the Board’s expectations.  Director Jorgens made a 
motion to add President Danziger to the Audit Committee with the purpose to give guidance to the newly 
approved auditors regarding the Board’s expectations.  Counsel Holtzman stated that, in order to take 
action, the Board would need to agendize this item for a future meeting.   
 
Counsel Holtzman stated that the Facilities Committee was previously focused on rebuilding Station 43.  
If the Committee is going to be focused solely on Station 41, it could remain an Ad Hoc Committee but 
should be renamed.  President Danziger asked if the District’s only facilities issue would be Station 41.  
Chief Winnacker responded affirmatively.  Director Jorgens recommended repurposing the Committee. 
 
Motion by Director Baitx and seconded by Director Donner to rename the Facilities Committee as the 
Facilities Station 41 Ad Hoc Committee.  Said motion carried a 5-0 voice vote (Ayes: Baitx, Jex, Jorgens, 
Donner, and Danziger; Noes: None; Absent: None).  
     
Counsel Holtzman recommended making the Long Range Planning Committee a Standing Committee if 
the Committee continues its operation on a long-term basis.  Although purely advisory, its function is 

7.1B



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 4 
October 16, 2019 
 

 

 

 

potentially ongoing and is charged with making recommendations that figure centrally in the District’s 
budget and future staff and activities.   Director Jorgens noted that the Committee worked as a “process” 
and is no longer needed for that function.  Director Jex said that the expectation is that the Committee be 
updated annually.  Counsel Holtzman suggested that the Long Range Planning Committee is part of the 
Finance Committee.  Director Jorgens noted that MOFD has a Finance Committee which has not met in 
a year.  President Danziger suggested combining the Audit and Finance Committees.  Counsel Holtzman 
noted that the Board could take action to eliminate the Finance Committee at the November meeting.  
President Danziger questioned combining the Audit and Finance Committees.  Director Jorgens 
suggested combining the Long Range Planning and Finance Committees.  Director Jex stated that the 
Finance Committee was not a Finance Committee but a budget process committee.  Director Jorgens 
stated that it makes more sense to combine the Finance and Long Range Planning Committees.  Counsel 
Holtzman recommended agendizing the item for a future meeting.       
 
Counsel Holtzman recommended retaining the Chief Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee as it will be needed 
for Chief Winnacker’s evaluation.   
   

8.4 Update on North Orinda Shaded Fuel Break Project 
 
Chief Winnacker provided the report.  He stated that the hand crew completed Phase One and Firestorm 
and their crew completed their work and the Fire Camp is being broken down.  He noted that this portion 
of the project included 35,400 labor hours over 89 days with no reportable injuries.  The project is 77% 
complete and includes 1,094 acres with 18.1 (94%) linear miles of line constructed.  He described the 
remaining work to be done including tree removal in Tilden Park, Wild Cat Canyon, Sleepy Hollow and 
Wagner Ranch schools.  The District will continue to investigate opportunities for additional funding to 
enhance the work that has been done.  He reviewed the project financial numbers and anticipated future 
invoices.   
 
Chief Winnacker stated that several controlled burns are planned and each burn requires a fire burn plan.   
The next scheduled prescribed burn will be at Wagner Ranch on October 20, 2019 if the weather holds.  
This burn ties into the work that has been done and aligns with one of the major routes of fire moving up 
the San Pablo Dam Drainage into the community and restores fire to the nature area.  It will be an 
opportunity to educate students and the community about the positive effects of fire.  Notices will be sent 
to Friends of Wagner Ranch, School District, MOFD and Orinda social media accounts, and signage.  
President Danziger asked about the trees on Happy Valley Road.  Chief Winnacker stated that they are 
on private property and MOFD has access agreements with the homeowners. 
 
President Danziger opened the public comment.  There were no requests to address the Board.  
President Danziger closed the Public Comment.  There was no discussion by the Board. 
 

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
9.1 Finance Committee (Directors Danziger and Jorgens) 

No report. 
9.2 Audit Ad Hoc Committee (Director Jex) 

No report. 
9.3 Long Range Financial Plan Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Donner and Jorgens) 

No report. 
9.4 Facilities Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Baitx and Donner) 

No report. 
9.5 Fire Chief Performance Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee (Directors Baitx and Donner) 

No report. 
 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
10.1 Brief information only reports related to meetings attended by a Director at District expense 

(Government Code Section 53232.3(d)) 
No report. 

10.2 Questions and informational comments from Board members and Staff 
Director Baitx recognized the crew who fought the Merrill Fire for their exceptional performance.  He 
also relayed a thank you from the folks on Sanders Ridge.  Director Jorgens noted that PG&E turned 

7.1B



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 5 
October 16, 2019 
 

 

 

 

the power off in the middle of the Merrill Fire.  He suggested that the area needs a forum to discuss 
options when the cable networks do not work, cell phone service was not available, and the Caldecott  
Tunnel proposed closure.  Director Donner stated that there were additional issues with the County 
Warning System and reverse 911 so that many residents did not receive notification.  Chief Winnacker 
stated that there were issues with the Nixle system.  That area is a cell service dead zone.  Director 
Jorgens stated that many folks lost cell reception.  
 
Director Baitx asked if there was an update on the third ambulance.  Chief Winnacker responded no.  
Director Baitx questioned the cancellation of the October 12, 2019 Open House.  Chief Winnacker 
stated that the power was still out, District resources were tapped on the fire, the District was short 
people available to work the event, so the Open House was cancelled.  Director Baitx said that many 
residents were disappointed that they could not come to say thank you. 
 
President Donner said that a byproduct of the planned power outage is a wakeup call for residents and 
that they were better prepared with emergency supplies.  Director Jorgens said that there was no way 
to report an emergency.  President Danziger said that he enrolled in the new CERT class and personal 
radios are recommended. Director Donner noted that ham radio operators are instrumental in the event 
of a major catastrophe. Chief Winnacker provided the statistics for the Community Warning System’s 
(CWS) efforts to contact residents: 276 accounts in the area and 74% of the calls were successful.  
Reverse 911 was 63% successful with 143 attempts.  Outreach efforts also included: 506 emails and 
texts and 246 text messages were sent.   Chief Winnacker noted that there were evacuation advantages 
because the area was relatively small, the homes are relatively easy to access with relatively short 
driveways and reasonably narrow lots and good access.  The Police Department was in charge of the 
evacuation.  The fire behaved erratically consistent with Red Flag conditions.  MOFD benefitted 
substantially from prepositioned resources in the area including Alameda, Contra Costa, Solano, 
Alameda EOS. 
 
Captain Michael Lacy from Station 45 provided an overview of the efforts to fight the fire.  The left side 
of the fire was very active and dangerous.  It increased very quickly to 50 acres but stalled on the 
ridgeline.  The firefighters used 6,000 feet of hose. Fighting the fire at night with 19 mph winds and 19% 
humidity was very challenging.  He noted that the citizens should be proud of what was accomplished.  
Director Jex asked how the prepositioning occurred.  Chief Winnacker replied that the threat was 
identified in red flag conditions.  When the criteria was met, prepositioned support was provided and 
paid for by the state.  Chief Winnacker noted that daylight was needed to fully assess the situation.  
Director Jex asked what started the fire.  The Moraga Police Department stated that it was accidental.  
Director Jorgens asked what was predone.  Chief Winnacker responded that strike teams were in place 
and ready to respond when we requested crews.  President Danziger questioned the use of sirens as 
a warning option.  Chief Winnacker stated that evacuation is a police department function per state law.   
Chief Winnacker noted that only approximately 30% of the community has signed by for the Community 
Warning System.   
 
Chief Winnacker noted that the firefighters are busy picking up the hoses from the Merrill Fire. 
 
There was a significant accident on San Pablo Dam Road.   
 
On October 15, 2019, seven firefighters were sent to the refinery fire in Crockett.  Crockett has a 
volunteer fire department.  The Incident Commander is a schoolteacher.   
 
Chief Winnacker reported that the District has conducted 855 inspections, issued 507 citations, and 
that 245 sites have passed.  He noted that 111 sites had failed inspection because no work was done.  
The program will ramp up with the newly hired staff.  The District’s goal is voluntary compliance and 
liens will be a last resort. 
 

10.3 Fire Chief Updates 
a. Human Resources  
HR Benefits Manager Russell reported that five fuels mitigation aides have been hired. A 
firefighter/paramedic recruitment was opened on October 1, 2019 and 70 applications have been 

7.1B



Board Meeting Minutes    Page 6 
October 16, 2019 
 

 

 

 

received.  Approximately 44% meet the minimum job qualifications.  One firefighter/paramedic will be 
attending the Berkeley Academy. 
b. Website Redesign 
Chief Winnacker stated that the website will be ADA compliant and the new design will be streamlined.  
Director Jorgens suggested that the first page contain a link to the Community Warning System. 

10.4 Communications Received 
Chief Winnacker reported that there have been a deluge of positive comments by residents.  He noted 
that there have been no complaints about the quality of care provided by the District in the 
approximately two years of his tenure.   President Danziger stated that he received an email from Jill 
Cordy, an Orinda resident, about paving work being done during the Red Flag Warning.  He requested 
that it be included in the meeting notes.  Chief Winnacker stated that paving is a city function.  He can 
speak to the City Manage and the Police Department but not to the City Council.  Director Jorgens 
asked what would be a reasonable action to take on Red Flag Days.  Chief Winnacker responded that 
there should be no parking on narrow streets, maintain awareness of evacuation plans, prepare 
defensible space, and do not engage in potentially dangerous outdoor activities.  Director Jorgens 
asked if the first two items have been communicated to the cities.  President Danziger stated that he is 
willing to speak to the Orinda City Council.  Counsel Holtzman noted that the city can pass an Ordinance 
prohibiting parking on narrow streets on Red Flag Days.  Chief Winnacker stated that it is important to 
take action pre-Red Flag event.  President Danziger stated that he will speak to the Orinda and Moraga 
Councils with the Board’s direction.  Board members unanimously concurred. 

10.5 Future Agenda Items 
President Danziger requested that a future Board agenda continue the third ambulance discussion and 
the NOSFB biological and cultural reports.  Director Donner noted that October 17, 2019 is the 30 th 
anniversary of the Loma Prieta earthquake.  He requested a moment of silence in remembrance of 
those lost in this disaster. 

 
11 ADJOURNMENT 

 
At 8:55 P.M., Director Jorgens motion to adjourn the meeting was seconded by President Danziger. Said motion 
carried a 5-0 voice vote (Ayes: Baitx, Jex, Jorgens, Donner, and Danziger; Noes: None; Absent: None). 
 
Attachment A:   Email received from Jill Cordy on October 15, 2019  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For an audio recording of this and other Board meetings, please visit the MOFD District Board Meeting webpage 
http://www.mofd.org/board/meetings 

7.1B

http://www.mofd.org/board/meetings


7.1B Attachment A



7.1B Attachment A



In
ci
de
nt
 L
oc
at
io
n 
M
ap
 f
or
 M
O
FD
  O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
9

In
ci
de
nt
 T
yp
es

A
ll 
O
th
er
s 
(A
la
rm
s 
/ P
ub
 S
er
vi
ce
 ..

E
M
S
 / 
R
es
cu
e

V
eg
 F
ir
es

V
eh
ic
le
 A
cc
id
en
ts

S
tr
uc
tu
re
 F
ir
es

Te
ch
ni
ca
l .
.

7.2A



O
ct
ob
er
, 2
01
9

A
ll 
O
th
er
s 
(A
la
rm
s 
/ P
ub
 S
er
vi
ce
 / 
E
tc
.)

In
 D
is
tr
ic
t

O
ut
 o
f D
is
t.

Th
ou
sa
nd

O
ak
s

E
M
S
 / 
R
es
cu
e

In
 D
is
tr
ic
t

O
ut
 o
f D
is
t.

S
tr
uc
tu
re
 F
ir
es

In
 D
is
tr
ic
t

O
ut
 o
f D
is
t.

V
eg
 F
ir
es

In
 D
is
tr
ic
t

O
ut
 o
f D
is
t.

V
eh
ic
le
 A
cc
id
en
ts

In
 D
is
tr
ic
t

O
ut
 o
f D
is
t.

To
ta
ls

In
ci
de
nt
 T
ot
al
s

M
ed
ia
n 
Tu
rn
ou
t

M
ed
ia
n 
R
es
p 
Ti
m
e

R
es
p 
Ti
m
e 
 (9
0t
h%
)

0.
05

0.
05

0.
051

28
.4
5

8.
08

0.
9510

9.
55

5.
77

1.
20

11
6

13
.9
2

7.
43

1.
407

8.
30

5.
17

1.
14

16
4

16
.4
7

8.
23

2.
592

4.
13

3.
83

1.
942

12
0.
43

76
.5
5

4.
252

15
.9
7

15
.9
7

2.
922

10
.8
3

5.
23

1.
033

10
.7
8

5.
43

0.
7818

10
.1
6

5.
53

1.
18

32
7

M
O
FD
 R
es
po
ns
e 
Ti
m
e 
Su
m
m
ar
y 
by
 In
ci
de
nt
 T
yp
e 
(g
ro
up
ed
) 
fo
r 
A
ll 
Co
de
 2
 a
nd
 C
od
e 
3 
Re
sp
on
se
s.

W
ill
 o
nl
y 
sh
ow
 In
ci
de
nt
 T
yp
es
 t
ha
t 
ar
e 
ap
pl
ic
ab
le
. 
EM
S/
Re
sc
ue
 \
 S
tr
uc
tu
re
 F
ir
es
 (
ac
tu
al
 t
yp
e 
is
 in
 a
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
) 
\ 
V
eg
et
at
io
n 
Fi
re
s 
\ 
O
th
er
 T
yp
es
 G
ro
up
ed
  -
 A
la
rm
s/
H
az
ar
ds
/P
ub
 S
vc
/E
tc
..
. 
D
at
a 
Is
 B
as
ed
 O
n

Co
m
pl
et
ed
 R
M
S 
In
ci
de
nt
 R
ep
or
t 
D
at
a 
En
te
re
d 
by
 C
om
pa
ny
 O
ff
ic
er
. 
Re
sp
. 
D
at
a 
Ba
se
d 
on
 "
Fi
rs
t 
A
rr
iv
in
g 
U
ni
t"
. 
"I
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t"
 =
 M
or
ag
a,
 O
ri
nd
a,
 C
an
yo
n.
 "
O
ut
 o
f 
D
is
tr
ic
t"
 =
 L
af
ay
et
te
 &
 a
ny
 O
th
er
 C
it
y 
A
id
 P
ro
vi
de
d 
to
.

N
ov
 1
8

D
ec
 1
8

Ja
n 
19

Fe
b 
19

M
ar
 1
9

A
pr
 1
9

M
ay
 1
9

Ju
n 
19

Ju
l 1
9

A
ug
 1
9

S
ep
 1
9

O
ct
 1
9

To
ta
l

A
ll 
O
th
er
s 
(A
la
rm
s 
/

P
ub
 S
er
vi
ce
 / 
E
tc
.)

E
M
S
 / 
R
es
cu
e

S
tr
uc
tu
re
 F
ir
es

V
eg
 F
ir
es

V
eh
ic
le
 A
cc
id
en
ts

G
ra
nd
 T
ot
al

3,
71
5

23
8

1720

2,
04
0

1,
40
0

40
2

214517
1

20
1

30
3

21116
5

11
6

31
2

194217
7

11
0

28
5

24115
5

10
5

30
1

103216
0

12
6

29
6

16416
7

10
9

30
1

192118
1

98

31
5

2319
4

98

29
0

24215
9

10
5

29
9

23116
5

11
0

30
2

20218
2

98

30
9

181216
4

12
4

Re
sp
on
se
 T
ot
al
s 
By
 In
ci
de
nt
 T
yp
eO
ct
ob
er
, 2
01
9

In
ci
de
nt
 T
ot
al
s

M
ed
ia
n 
Tu
rn
ou
t

M
ed
ia
n 
R
es
p 
Ti
m
e

R
es
p 
Ti
m
e 
 (9
0t
h%
)

O
ri
nd
a

E
M
S
 / 
R
es
cu
e

A
ll 
O
th
er
 T
yp
es To
ta
ls
 fo
r 
C
ity

M
or
ag
a

E
M
S
 / 
R
es
cu
e

S
tr
uc
tu
re
 F
ir
es

A
ll 
O
th
er
 T
yp
es To
ta
ls
 fo
r 
C
ity

La
fa
ye
tt
e

E
M
S
 / 
R
es
cu
e To
ta
ls
 fo
r 
C
ity

C
an
yo
n

E
M
S
 / 
R
es
cu
e

A
ll 
O
th
er
 T
yp
es To
ta
ls
 fo
r 
C
ity

O
ve
ra
ll 
To
ta
l

8.
99

8.
58

9.
20

5.
76

5.
90

5.
67

1.
17

1.
03

1.
23

12
7

3394

8.
09

9.
42

4.
13

7.
20

4.
25

4.
63

3.
83

4.
25

1.
10

1.
20

1.
94

0.
97

8025253

12
.4
6

12
.4
6

7.
43

7.
43

1.
40

1.
40

99

14
.4
3

14
.4
3

12
.3
5

13
.3
9

14
.4
3

12
.3
5

2.
28

2.
85

1.
72

211

8.
99

5.
35

1.
14

21
8

Co
de
 3
 R
es
po
ns
e 
Ti
m
e 
Su
m
m
ar
y 
by
 C
it
y 
an
d 
In
ci
de
nt
 T
yp
e.
 T
im
es
 s
ho
w
n 
ar
e 
ba
se
d 
on
 t
he
 F
ir
st
 R
es
po
nd
in
g 
U
ni
ts
 A
rr
iv
al
 a
t 
Sc
en
e 
of
 E
m
er
ge
nc
y.

7.2B



N
ov
 1
8

D
ec
 1
8

Ja
n 
19

Fe
b 
19

M
ar
 1
9

A
pr
 1
9

M
ay
 1
9

Ju
n 
19

Ju
l 1
9

A
ug
 1
9

S
ep
 1
9

O
ct
 1
9

E
M
S
 /

R
es
cu
e

A
ll

In
ci
de
nt

Ty
pe
s

1.
1

1.
2

Med Turnout Time

5.
00

5.
50

Median Resp Time

1.
1

1.
2

Med Turnout Time

5.
00

5.
50

Median Resp Time

1.
27

1.
13

1.
15

1.
15

1.
03

1.
17

1.
10

1.
10

1.
18

1.
09

1.
22

1.
08

5.
08

5.
08

5.
07

5.
10

5.
12

5.
00

4.
80

5.
35

4.
85

5.
30

5.
28

4.
88

1.
17

1.
07

1.
15

1.
15

1.
27

1.
20

1.
13

1.
12

1.
12

1.
23

1.
23

1.
23

5.
88

5.
37

5.
38

5.
42

5.
43

5.
43

5.
48

5.
05

5.
52

5.
22

5.
14

5.
17

Ru
n 
Ch
ar
t 
fo
r 
M
O
FD
 E
M
S 
/ 
Re
sc
ue
 a
nd
 A
ll 
In
ci
de
nt
 T
yp
es
 f
or
 t
he
 la
st
 f
ul
l 1
2 
m
on
th
s.
 M
ed
ia
n 
Tu
rn
ou
t 
an
d 
Re
sp
on
se
 T
im
es
 B
y 
M
on
th
 f
or
 F
ir
st
 A
t 
Sc
en
e

U
ni
ts

7.2C











Moraga-Orinda Fire District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - General Fund Actual to Budget 19/20

From 7/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Actual
Current Period 

- Original
Total Budget $ 

Variance - Original
Total Budget $ 

- Original
Budget Remaining 

Percent Total 

Expenditures

Salaries & Benefits

Permanent Salaries 5011 2,177,372.89 9,968,534.00 7,791,161.11 78.16%

Temporary Salaries 5013 55,006.06 269,651.00 214,644.94 79.60%

Overtime 5014 361,931.53 1,830,828.00 1,468,896.47 80.23%

Deferred Compensation 5015 5,226.00 22,700.00 17,474.00 76.98%

Overtime - Strike Team 5016 80,267.03 540,020.00 459,752.97 85.14%

Contract Services 5018 16,365.45 0.00 (16,365.45) 0.00%

Worker's Compensation 
Recovery

5019 (34,856.32) (150,000.00) (115,143.68) 76.76%

Payroll Taxes -FICA,SUI 5042 41,622.10 207,193.00 165,570.90 79.91%

Payroll Processing Fees 5043 2,859.80 20,000.00 17,140.20 85.70%

Retirement Contributions 5044 1,213,995.19 5,388,042.00 4,174,046.81 77.47%

Life/Health 
Insurance-Permanent 
Employees

5060 265,696.90 1,380,492.00 1,114,795.10 80.75%

Employee's-Health Insurance 
Contribution

5061 (25,250.94) (140,664.00) (115,413.06) 82.05%

Retiree Health Insurance 5062 304,910.33 1,275,000.00 970,089.67 76.09%

Retiree-Health Insurance 
Contribution

5063 (85,072.46) (350,000.00) (264,927.54) 75.69%

Unemployment Insurance 5064 0.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 100.00%

Retiree-Health OPEB 
Contribution

5065 0.00 559,108.00 559,108.00 100.00%

Vision Insurance 5066 3,635.37 20,796.00 17,160.63 82.52%

Pension Rate Stabilization 5067 0.00 1,023,850.00 1,023,850.00 100.00%

Workers' Compensation 
Insurance

5070 256,529.00 1,021,161.00 764,632.00 74.88%

Total Salaries & Benefits 4,640,237.93 22,897,711.00 18,257,473.07 79.73%

Operating Expense

Office Supplies 6100 2,486.93 10,300.00 7,813.07 75.86%

Postage 6101 1,133.30 5,000.00 3,866.70 77.33%

Books & Periodicals 6102 156.34 7,660.00 7,503.66 97.96%

Printer Ink Cartridges 6103 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 100.00%

Telephone/Communication 6110 8,895.75 50,000.00 41,104.25 82.21%

Dispatch/Comm Center 
Services w/ AVL MDT

6111 0.00 188,700.00 188,700.00 100.00%

Utilities- Sewer 6120 0.00 4,100.00 4,100.00 100.00%

Utilities-Garbage 6121 3,734.40 14,050.00 10,315.60 73.42%

Utilities-PG&E 6122 14,246.63 69,900.00 55,653.37 79.62%

Utilities-Water 6123 4,641.98 18,300.00 13,658.02 74.63%

Utilities-Medical Waste 6124 704.23 2,200.00 1,495.77 67.99%

Small Tools & Instruments 6130 0.00 8,250.00 8,250.00 100.00%

Minor Equipment/Furniture 6131 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 100.00%

Computer Equipment & 
Supplies

6132 20.63 3,000.00 2,979.37 99.31%

Gas Power Chain Saw/Other 
Equipmen

6133 146.44 6,800.00 6,653.56 97.85%

Fire Trail Grading 6135 9,607.69 25,000.00 15,392.31 61.57%

Fire Fighting Equipment & 
Supplies

6137 4,453.09 7,000.00 2,546.91 36.38%

Fire Fighting Equipment-Hoses 
& Nozzles

6138 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 100.00%

7.4



Moraga-Orinda Fire District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - General Fund Actual to Budget 19/20

From 7/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Actual
Current Period 

- Original
Total Budget $ 

Variance - Original
Total Budget $ 

- Original
Budget Remaining 

Percent Total 

Fire Fighting Equipment-Class 
A Foam

6139 0.00 5,125.00 5,125.00 100.00%

Medical & Lab Supplies 6140 22,549.01 100,000.00 77,450.99 77.45%

Food Supplies 6150 839.87 4,000.00 3,160.13 79.00%

Safety Clothing & Personal 
Supplies

6160 9,294.22 120,000.00 110,705.78 92.25%

Household Expense 6170 2,336.95 17,000.00 14,663.05 86.25%

Household Expense-Linen 6171 1,043.38 6,440.00 5,396.62 83.80%

Public & Legal Notices 6190 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.00%

Dues, Memberships & 
Professional Fees

6200 382.50 8,555.00 8,172.50 95.53%

EMT/Paramedic Licensure Fees 6201 400.00 4,000.00 3,600.00 90.00%

Rent & Leases (Equipment) 6250 5,970.03 29,900.00 23,929.97 80.03%

Computer Software & 
Maintenance

6251 42,899.59 75,500.00 32,600.41 43.18%

Website Development & 
Maintenance

6252 4,245.00 8,000.00 3,755.00 46.94%

EPA ID# Verification Fee 6264 150.00 150.00 0.00 0.00%

CCC HazMat Plan (CUPA) 6265 462.00 3,000.00 2,538.00 84.60%

BAAQMD & Environmental 
Health Fees

6266 0.00 900.00 900.00 100.00%

Air Monitor Maintenance & 
Replacement

6269 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 100.00%

Maintenance -- Equipment 6270 25,446.66 70,840.00 45,393.34 64.08%

Central Garage Repairs 6271 2,314.95 200,000.00 197,685.05 98.84%

Central Garage Gasoline & Oil 6272 16,967.54 65,000.00 48,032.46 73.90%

Central Garage Tires 6273 3,183.88 7,500.00 4,316.12 57.55%

Service/Repair Fuel System 
Dispensers

6274 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 100.00%

Aerial Ladder & Pump Testing 6275 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 100.00%

Smog Inspections 6276 0.00 500.00 500.00 100.00%

Air Compressor Quarterly 
Service

6278 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 100.00%

Hydro Test SCBA & Oxy 
Cylinder

6279 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 100.00%

Tank Testing 6280 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 100.00%

Maintenance -- Building 6281 10,260.39 64,000.00 53,739.61 83.97%

Maintenance -- Grounds 6282 687.31 6,400.00 5,712.69 89.26%

Meetings & Travel Expenses 6303 508.05 3,875.00 3,366.95 86.89%

Medical - Pre-Emp Processing 
and Annual Exams

6311 1,719.07 30,000.00 28,280.93 94.27%

Ambulance Billing 
Administration Fees

6312 16,953.76 74,160.00 57,206.24 77.14%

Outside Attorney Fees 6313 22,056.41 150,000.00 127,943.59 85.30%

Outside CPR Instructors 6314 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 100.00%

CCC County Tax Administration 
Fee

6316 0.00 205,000.00 205,000.00 100.00%

Professional Services 6317 8,745.00 46,000.00 37,255.00 80.99%

Professional Services - Labor 
Negotiator

6318 1,719.50 2,000.00 280.50 14.03%

Professional Services - 
Technology

6319 31,884.00 205,452.00 173,568.00 84.48%

7.4



Moraga-Orinda Fire District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - General Fund Actual to Budget 19/20

From 7/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Actual
Current Period 

- Original
Total Budget $ 

Variance - Original
Total Budget $ 

- Original
Budget Remaining 

Percent Total 

Professional Services - 
Pre-Employment Investigations

6320 6,389.00 15,000.00 8,611.00 57.41%

Professional Services - 
Promotional Exams & 
Recruitment

6321 148.28 6,000.00 5,851.72 97.53%

Professional Services-OPEB 
Actuarial Valuation

6322 2,889.41 5,500.00 2,610.59 47.47%

Exterior Hazard Removal 6323 12,007.50 25,000.00 12,992.50 51.97%

Professional Services-Prop Tax 
Audit & Forecasting

6326 0.00 8,200.00 8,200.00 100.00%

Professional Services 6327 0.00 14,000.00 14,000.00 100.00%

Burn Trailer Grant Maintenance 6352 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 100.00%

Testing Materials & Training 
Props

6354 2,002.45 20,000.00 17,997.55 89.99%

Career Development Classes 6357 1,044.00 25,000.00 23,956.00 95.82%

Target Safety Online Training 6359 3,515.00 9,000.00 5,485.00 60.94%

Training & Education 
Classes-Paramedic & EMT CE

6360 490.00 10,000.00 9,510.00 95.10%

District Sponsored 
Training-Mandated

6361 (1,331.61) 20,000.00 21,331.61 106.66%

Recruiting Costs 6470 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 100.00%

Strike Team Supplies 6474 6,153.90 9,500.00 3,346.10 35.22%

Community Emergency 
Response Team

6475 804.75 8,000.00 7,195.25 89.94%

Exercise Supplies/Maint. 6476 4,280.49 5,000.00 719.51 14.39%

Recognition Supplies 6478 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 100.00%

Other Special Departmental Exp 6479 12,160.10 95,950.00 83,789.90 87.33%

Public Education Supplies 6480 (150.00) 3,700.00 3,850.00 104.05%

CPR Supplies 6481 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 100.00%

LAFCO 6482 16,300.67 12,500.00 (3,800.67) (30.41)%

Emergency Preparedness 
Expense

6484 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.00%

Misc. Services & Supplies 6490 7,461.00 35,800.00 28,339.00 79.16%

Fire Chief Contingency 6491 6,025.16 100,000.00 93,974.84 93.97%

Property & Liability Insurance 6540 45,781.00 57,000.00 11,219.00 19.68%

Total Operating Expense 409,217.58 2,520,507.00 2,111,289.42 83.76%

Other Expense

Bank Fees 7510 803.21 3,300.00 2,496.79 75.66%

County Tax Collection Fees 7530 0.00 300.00 300.00 100.00%

Transfers to Debt Service Fund 7999 161,208.80 1,085,000.00 923,791.20 85.14%

Total Other Expense 162,012.01 1,088,600.00 926,587.99 85.12%

Total Expenditures 5,211,467.52 26,506,818.00 21,295,350.48 80.34%

Excess of Revenues Over/ (Under) 
Expenditures

14,998,300.13 0.00 14,998,300.13 0.00%

7.4

























































































































































































































































































































































































































12 

 

 
Figure 11: Crew removing fallen trees and taking care to avoid and preserve the historic-era ditch to the 

right. 
 
 
 

 
Figure 12: Crew hand clearing high grasses and low hanging limbs taking care not to damage nearby 

archaeological material.

8.3B



 
 

 

 

 
Figure 13: Corral that appears to have been constructed using railroad ties from the California and Nevada 

Railroad 
 

 
Figure 14: A rock retaining wall constructed in the late 1800s - the early 1900s. 

8.3B



     

 

PLANNED AND ONGOING CULTURAL RESOURCES WORK 
 
The North Orinda Shaded Fuel Break Project is ongoing. Currently CRP is developing a preliminary cultural 
resources compliance report that will include:  

• More detailed background information contextualizing the historic significance of the project 
area; 

• A summary of all cultural resources identified as a result of this project; 
• Revised data regarding cultural resources and site sensitivity based on field investigations; and; 
• Long-term mitigation measures for the region as a whole and for the individual project areas. 

 
Furthermore, in consultation with, and under review by CAL FIRE, CRP will complete a final in-depth 
cultural resources compliance report that will, at a minimum, meet state and federal guidelines under the 
California Environmental Qualities Act (CEQA) and the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA). This final 
report will be filed with the California Office of Historic Preservation for inclusion in California Historical 
Resources Information System. This final technical report will follow all guidelines regarding 
confidentiality and public disclosure, however, if requested by CAL FIRE, CRP will produce a redacted 
version that may be available for public disclosure.  
 

8.3B



Moraga-Orinda Fire District | 1280 Moraga Way | Moraga, California 94556 | 925.258.4599 | Fax 925.376.1699 | www.mofd.org

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Dave Winnacker, Fire Chief 

DATE: November 20, 2019 

SUBJECT: Item 8.4 – Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Consulting Services Agreement 
Between the Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District and Consolidated CM, Inc. in 
the Amount of $160,000 and Approval of Capital Projects Fund Expenditure 
Budget Adjustment Increase in the Amount of $65,087 

BACKGROUND 

In September 2017 the Board authorized a contract with Consolidated CM, Inc. (Consolidated) 
for construction management services for the station 43 construction project in the amount not to 
exceed of $229,638. Subsequently it became necessary to expand the scope of work with 
Consolidated to include a constructability review due to issues with the construction project. In 
December 2017 the Board authorized Amendment No. 1 with Consolidated in the amount not to 
exceed $62,700 to perform the constructability review.  

The project time in the original contract covered construction work through December 2018 and 
anticipated the project would be carried out by FSG. The District subsequently rebid the project 
and awarded the contract to Sausal Construction who began work in May 2018. As a result of the 
rebid process. Station 43 opened on May 14, 2019. The additional project time resulted in 
additional construction management costs and inspections as well as other project issues that 
resulted in increased construction management costs that are detailed in Attachment A.   

Staff requests the Board authorize Amendment No. 2 to the consulting services agreement with 
Consolidated in the amount of $160,000.   

Capital Projects Fund Expenditure Budget Adjustment Increase 

The remaining Station 43 project budget is $94,913 which is insufficient to pay for the increased 
construction management costs. A Capital Projects Fund expenditure budget adjustment 
increase is necessary in the amount of $65,087.  

Recommended Action 

1) Discuss; 2) Deliberate; 3) Approve Amendment No. 2 to the Consulting Services Agreement 
Between the Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District and Consolidated CM, Inc. in the Amount of
$160,000 and Approve Capital Projects Fund Expenditure Budget Adjustment Increase in the 
Amount of $65,087.

Attachments 

Attachment A – Consolidated CM, Inc. Additional Inspector and CM Services Request 

Attachment B – Consulting Services Agreement Between the Moraga Orinda Fire Protection 

District and Consolidated CM, Inc. 

Attachment C – Amendment No. 1 

Moraga-Orinda Fire District

8.4



8.4A



8.4A



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B



8.4B





Moraga-Orinda Fire District | 1280 Moraga Way | Moraga, California 94556 | 925.258.4599 | Fax 925.376.1699 | www.mofd.org 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: David Winnacker, Fire Chief 

DATE: November 20, 2019 

SUBJECT: Item 8.5 – Authorize the Fire Chief to Amend the Cooperative Funding Agreement 
Among the East Bay Regional Park District and the Moraga Orinda Fire District for 
Fuels Management in an Amount Not to Exceed $313,000 

Background 

The District has contracted with the State of California to create a 19-mile long shaded fuel break 
in North Orinda and Lafayette in partnership with CALFIRE, Contra Costa County Fire Protection 
District, EBMUD and EBRPD.  

In July 2019 the District recognized the need to conduct fuels management work on land owned 
by EBRPD. To meet this requirement, the District entered into a cooperative funding agreement 
with EBRPD in the amount of $84,000 (Attachment A).  

In accordance with District policy, contracts in excess of $100,000 require board approval. 

Additional Work 

As the District completes work on the North Orinda Shaded Fuel Break, additional eucalyptus and 
pine trees have been identified for removal on EBRPD lands in Tilden Park. Due to the nature of 
the work, special considerations associated with work on parklands, and EBRPD existing 
relationships with tree removal contractors, it is advantageous for this work to be carried out by 
EBRPD directly. The North Orinda Emergency Fuel Break Special Revenue Fund Budget 
contains sufficient appropriations for these services. The services are funded through the District’s 
contract with the State. Staff recommends the Board authorize an amendment to the cooperative 
funding agreement with EBRPD increasing the contract amount from $84,000 to an amount not 
to exceed $313,000 (Attachment B). 

Recommended Action 

1) Discuss; 2) Deliberate; 3) Authorize the Fire Chief to Enter into Amendment No. 1 with East
Bay Regional Park District to Conduct Fuels Management in an Amount not to Exceed $313,000.

Attachments 

Attachment A – Cooperative Funding Agreement Among the East Bay Regional Park District and 
the Moraga Orinda Fire District For Fuels Management 

Attachment B – Amendment No. 1 to Cooperative Funding Agreement 

Moraga-Orinda Fire District 

8.5
















	8.3 Attachment A Biologist Overview Report.pdf
	NOSFB Sequoia Overview Report-Draft_100119
	Sequoia Ecological Consulting, Inc. Involvement Summary; North Orinda Shaded Fuel Break Project
	PROJECT OVERVIEW
	SENSITIVE RESOURCES IN THE PROJECT AREA
	SEQUOIA ECOLOGICAL CONSULTING, INC. ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES
	Appendix A:
	Avoidance and Minimization Measures
	Appendix B:
	Example Photo Point

	Appendix A NOSFB Combined AMMs
	EBMUD-EBRPD Combined Avoidance and Minimization Measures:

	Appendix B_Example Photopoint

	8.3 Attachment B NOSFB_Cultural_Resources_Summary_02.pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	SUMMARY OF METHODS AND RESULTS
	STUDY and PRESERVATION METHODS
	RESULTS SUMMARY
	ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING
	CULTURAL RESOURCES

	SURFICIAL SITE SENSITIVITY ASSESSMENT
	CULTURAL RESOURCES FIELD RECONNAISSANCE
	MITIGATION MEASURES AND TRAINING
	CULTURAL RESOURCES MONITORING
	PLANNED AND ONGOING CULTURAL RESOURCES WORK




